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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ": ‘-:i .
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY -
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Civil No.
Plaintiff, STIPULATED JUDGMENT AND
' ORDER FOR
v. PERMANENT INJUNCTION
FLAGSHIP RESORT DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, a New Jersey
corporation,

60 N. Maine Avenue
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401,

and

ATLANTIC PALACE DEVELOPMENT, -
LLC, a New Jersey limited Hability
corporation,

1507 New York Avenue
and the Boardwalk
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401,

Defendants.

Flaintiff, the United States of America, actiug upuy nolification and authorization to the
Attormey General by the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or the “Commission™), has
commenced this action by filing the complaint herein, and Defendants have been served with the

summons and the complaint. The parties, represented by the attomeys whose names appear



hereafter, have agreed to settlement of this action without adjudication of any issue of fact or
law, and without Defendants admitting liability for any of the violations alleged in the
complaint.
THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED,
'ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows:
FINDINGS
1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties pursuant to
28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345 and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a), and
57b.
2. Venue is proper as to all parties in this District.
3. The activities of Defendants are in or affecting commerce, as defined in Section 4‘
of the FTC Act, 15US.C. § 44, |
4, The complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against
Defendants, under Sectious 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A), 13(b), and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(2), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), and 57b.
5. Defendants have entered into this Stipulated Judgment and Order for Permanent
Injunction (“Order”) freely and without coercion.
6. Defendants hereby waive all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or contest the
validiéy of this Order.
7. Delendants have agreed that this Order does not entitle Defendants to seek or to
obtain attorneys’ fees as a prevailing party under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C.
§ 2412, and Defendants further waive any rights to attorneys’ fees that may arise under said
provision of law,

8. Entry of this Orde: is in (he public interest.

.



DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Ordc;-, the following definitions shall apply:

1. “Asset” means any legal or equitable interest in, or right or claim to, any real and
personal property, including without limitation, chattels, goods, insmﬁnents, equipment, fixtures,
general intangibles, leascholds, mail or other deliverics, inventory, chocks, notcs, accounts,
credits, contracts, receivahles, shares of stack, and all cash, wherever located.

2. “Defendants” means Flagship Resort Development Corporation, a New Jersey
corporation (“Flagship”), and Atlantic Palace Development, LLC, a New Jersey limited liability
corporation (“Atlantic Palace™).

3. The “Telemarketing Sales Rule” or “Rule” means the FTC Rule entitled
“Telemarketing Sales Rule,” 16 C.F.R. § 310, attached hereto as Appendix A,

4. “Customer” means any person who is or may be required to pay for goods or

services offered through telemarketing,

5. “Outbound telephone call™ means a telephone call initiated by a telemarketer to
induce the purchase of goods or services or to solicit 2 charitable contribution.

6. “Person”™ means any individual, group, 'unincorporatcd association, limited or
general partnership, corporation, or other business entity.

7. “Telemarketing”™ means a plan, program, or campaign which is conducted to
induce the purchase of goods or services or a charitable contribution, by use of one or more
telephones and which involves more than one interstate telephone call. The term does not
include the solicitation of sules through the mailing of a catalog which: contains a written
description or illustration of the goods or services offered for sale; includes the business address
of the seller; includes multiple pages of written material or illustrations; and has been issued not

less frequently than once a year, when the person muking the solicitation does not solicit
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customers by telephone but only receives calls initiated by customers in response to the catalog
and dufing those calls takes orders only without further solicitation. For purposes of the
previous sentence, the tcrrﬁ “further solicitation does not include providing the customer with
information about, or attempting 1o sell, auy other item included in the sume catalog which
prompted the customer’s call or in a substantially similar catalog.

8. “Seller” means any person who, in connection with a telemarketing transaction,
provides, offers to provide, or arranges for others to provide goods or services to the customer in
exchange for cénsideratiou, whether or not such person is under the jurisdiotibn of the Federal
Trade Commission.

9. “Telemarketer” means any person who, in connection with telemarketing,
initiates or receives telephone calls to or from a customer or donor.

10. “Representatives” means Defendants’ successors, assigns, officers, agénts,
servants, employees and those persons in active concert or participaﬁon Wiﬂ] them who receive
actual notice of this Order by personal scrvice or otherwise.

11.  “National Do Not Call R egisiry” means the N#tional Do Not Call Registry
mamtained by the Federal Trade Commission pursuant to 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(1)( iii)(B).

12. “Estéblished business relationship” means a relationship between the sgller anda
person based on: (a) the person’s purchase, rental, or lease of the seller’s goods or services or a
financial transaction between the person and seller, within the eighteen (1 8) months mmediately
preceding the date of the telemarketing call; or (b) the person’s inquiry or application regarding a
product or service offered by the seller, within the three months immediately preceding the date

of a telemarketing call.



ORDER

I. PROHIBITION AGAINST ABUSIVE TELEMARKETING PRACTICES

IT IS ORDERED that, in connection with telemarketing, Defendants and their
Ropresentatives arc hercby permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging in, or causing
other persons to engage in, violations of the Telemarketing Sales Rule, including but not limited
to:

A, Initiating any outbonnd telephone call to a person’s telephone number on the
National Do Not Call Registry to induce the purchase of goods or servicesA unless: |

1. The seller has obtained the express agreement, in writing, of such persbon
to place calls to that person. Such wntten agreement shall clearly evidence such person’s |
authorization that calls made by or on behalf of a specific party may be placed to that person,
and shall include the telephone number to which the calls may be placed and the signature of that
PEISON;

2. | The seller cun prove an established busincss relationship with guch person
and that person has not stated that he or she does not wish to receive outbound telephone calls
from the seller; or

3. The provisions of 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(b)(3) (the Telemarketing Sales Rule
Do Not Call safe harbor) are met.

B. Abandoning any outbound telephone call to a person by failing to connect the call
to a representative within two (2) seconds of the person’s completed greeting, unless the
following four (4) conditions are met:

1. Defendants employ technology that ensures abandonment of no more than
three (3) pervent of all calls answered by a person, measured per day per calﬁng campaipgn; |

2. Defendants and their Representatives, for each tclomarkoting call placcd,
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allow the telephone to ring for at least fifteen (15) seconds or four (4) rings before disconnecting
an unanswered call;

3. Whenever a representative is not available to speak with the person
answering the call within two (2) seconds after the person’s comaploted grecting, the seller or
telemarketer promptly plays a recorded message that states the name and telephane numbér of
the seller on whose behalf the call was placed; and

4, Defendants retain records, in accordance with 16 C.F.R. § 310:5 (b)~(d),
establishing compliance with the preceding three conditions; and

C. Initiating any outbound teleﬁhone call to a telephone number within é given area
code without first paying the required annual fee for access 1o the telephone numbers, within that
area code, that are on the National Do Not Call Registry,

| Provided, however, that if the Commission promulgates rules that modify or supersede
the Telemarkoting Sales Rule, in whels or parl, Defendants shall comply fully and completely
with all applicable requirements thereof, on and after the effective date of any such rules.
II. CIVIL PENALTY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that judgment in the amount of Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($500,000.00) is hereby entered against Defendants, jointly and severally, as a civil
penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C.

§ 45(m)(1)(A).

A, Prior to or concurrently with their execution of this Order, Defendants shall turn
over the full amount of the civil penalty to their attorney, who shall hold the entire sum for no
purpose other than payment 1o the Treasurer of the United States after entry of this Order by the
Court. Within five (5) days of receipt of notice of the entry of this Order, Defendants’ attomey

shall transfer the civil penalty payment in the form of a wire transfer or certified or cashicr’s
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check made payable to the Treasﬁrer of the. United States. The check or written confirmation of
the wire transfer shall be delivered to: Dircctor, Office of Consumer Litigation, U.S.
Department of Justice Civil Division, PO, Box 386, Washington, DC 20044. The cover letter
accompanying the cheek shall include the title of this litigation and a 1eference to DI# 102-3245,

B. In the event of defanlt an the payment required to be made by this Paragraph, the
entire Linpaid civil penalty, together with interest computed under 28 U.S.C. § 1961 -- accrued
from the date of default until the date of payment -- shall be immediately due and payable.
Detendants agrec that, in such event, the facts as alleged in the complaint filed in this action
shall be taken as true in any subscquent litigation filed by Plaintiff or the Commission to enforce
their rights pursuant to this Order, including but not limited to a nondischargeability complaint in
any subsequent bankruptcy procceding.

C. Defendants shall cooperate fully with Plaintiff and the Commission and their
agents in all altempis Lo collect the arnount due pursuant to this Paragraiah if'any of Detendants
fail to pay fully the amount duc at the time specificd horein. In such an event, Defendants agies
to provide Plaintiff and the Commission with their federal and state tax returns for the preceding
two years, and to complete new standard-form financial disclosure forms fully and accurately
within teﬁ (10) business days of receiving a request from Plaintiff or the Commission to do so.
Defendants further authorize Plaintiff and the Commission to verify all information provided on
their financial disclosute forms with all appropriate third parties, including but not limited to
financial institutions.

D. In accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701, Defendants are hereby required, unless they
have done so already, to furmsh to Plaintiff and the FTC their taxpayer identifying number(s)

(social security numbers or eruployer identification numbers) which shall be used for purposes of
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collecting and reporting on any delinquent amount arising out of Defendants’ relationship with

the government.

IIT, ACCURACY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

IT IS FURTIIER ORDERED that Plaintiff’s and the Commission’s agreement to and
the Court’s approval of this Order are expressly premised upon the tmthfulness, accuracy, and
completeness of the financial statements and information provided by Defendants to the Plaintiff
or the Commission set forth on Appendix B hereto. If, upon motion by the‘Plaintiff, this Court
finds that any of Defendants’ financial statements failed to disclose any material asset or
materially misstate the value of any asset, the Plaintiff may request that this Order be reopened
for the purpose of requiring additional civil penalties from each Defendant who made such
misrepresentation or omission; provfded, however, that in all other respects this Order shall ‘
remain in full force and effect unless otherwise ordered by this Court; and provided further, that
proveedings instituled under this Paragraph are in addition 10, and not in lieu of, any other civil
or criminal remedies available by law. Solely for the purposes of reopening or enforcing this
Pareigraph, Defendants waive any right to contest any of the allegations set forth in the cpmplaint
filed in this matter.

1V. RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED thﬁt for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry
of this Order, Defendants, and their successors and assigns, shall maintain and make available to
the Federal Trade Commission, within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of a written request,

business records demonstrating compliance with the terms and provisions of this Order.



V. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS AND
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS OF RECEIPT

IT S FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall
within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Order, provide a copy of this Order with Appendices
A and B to all of its owners, principals, members, officers, and Idirectors, as well as manageré,
agents, servants, employees, and attorncys having decision-making authority with respect to the
subject matter of this Order; secure from each such person a signed statement acknowledging
recelpt of a copy of this Order; and shall, within ten (10) days of comﬁlying with this Pacagraph,
file an affidavit with the Court and serve the Federal Trade Comumission, by mailing a copy
thereof; to the Associate Director for Marketing Practices, Bureau of Consumer Protoction,
Federal Trade Commission, 600 Permsylvania Ave., N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580, sgtting
forth the fact and mﬁnner of its compliance, including the name and title of each person to whom

a copy of the Order has been provided.
Vi. NOTIFICATION OF BUSINESS CHANGES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each Defendant, and its successors and assigns, shall
notify the Associate Director for Marketing Practices, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal
Trade Corﬁmission, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580, at least thirty (30)
days prior to any changc.in such Defendant’s business, including, but not limited to, Taerger,
incorporation, dissolution, assignment, and salc, which rosults in the emergence vl a Successur
corporation, the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary or parent, or any other change, Whicil may
affect such Defendant’s obligations under this Order.

Vil. FEES AND COSTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each party to this Order hereby agrees to bear its

own costs ;'md attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with this action.
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VIII. SEVERABILITY

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that the provisions of this Order are separate and
severable from one another. If any provision is stayed or determined to be invalid, the remaining
provisions shall remain in full forcc and cffcct.

1X. RETENTION OF HIRISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for

purposes of cénstruction, modification and enforccment of this Order.
X. COMPLETE SETTLEMENT

The parties, by their respective counsel, hereby consent to entry of the foregoing Order
which shall constitute a final judgment and order in this matter. The parties further stipulate and
agree that the eniry of the foregoing Order shall éonstitute a full, complete and ﬁné] settlement
of this action.

JUDGMENT IS THEREFORE ENTERED in favor of Plaintiff and against
/! |
1
T
//
//
1
17

1

I/
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Defendants, pursuant 10 all the terms and conditions recited above,

SO ORDERED this day of >, 200

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF FOR DEFENDANTS:

AMERICA: /ﬁ//r——-

PETER D. KEISLER, JR. : Frank Gorman, Esq., Attorney for

Assistant Attorney General Defendants Flagship Resort

Civil Division Development Corporation and

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE Atlantic I'alace Devolopment, LLC .

CHRISTOPHER I, CHRISTIE NV % NN/

United States Attorney Flagship Resort Development Corp., by

District of New Jersey Michael L. Valenti, Vice President and

. Chief Financial Qfficer

Siion T, Stecl ML C

Assistant U.S. Attomey Atlantic Palace Development, LLC, by
Michael L. Valenti, Assistant Manager

EUGENE M. THIROLF and Chief Financial Officer

Director

Office of Consumcr Litigation

:Qlﬁ?QZ&LKA%h_ijZZLag_______

ELIZABETH STEIN
Attorney
Office of Consumer Litigation
Civil Division
U.S. Department of Justice
Washington, DC 20530

202-307=-04R6

FOR THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION:

&@M@ 00)

Associate Director for Marketing Practices
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Allen Hile 4
Assistant Director for MMI:KPracﬁces

. A
Michael I. Davis
Attorney, Division of M arketings Practices
Bureau of Consumer Protection
Federal Trade Commission
Washington, DC 20580

5 "
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PART 3T ﬁ—TELEMARKETlNG SALES
RULE '

Sec.
" 310.1 Scope of regulainons in this part.
310.2 Definitions. .
. 310.3 Deceptive telemarketing acts or prac-
tices.
310.4 Abusive telema.rketlng a.cts or prac-
tices.
310.5. Recordkeepmg' reguirements.
310.6 -Hxemptions.
310.7 Actions by states and private persons.
' 310.8 Fee for access to ‘‘do-not-call” reg-
istry.
_310.9 Severability.

AUTHORITY: 15 U.S.C. 6101~6108.

SOURCE: 68 FR 4669, ‘Jan. 28, 2003, unless
otherwme noted. U -
§310.1 Scope of regulations .in: this

part. :

This part implements the Tele-
marketlng ‘and Consumer Fraud a.nd

16 CFR Ch. L. (1-1-04 Edifion)

‘ Abuse Prevention -Act, 15-T:8: C 6101-
- 6108, as amended. ’

§310.2 Definitions.

(a) .Acquirer means a business organi-
zation, financial institution, or an
agent of a business organization or fi-
nancial institution that. has authority
from an organization that operates or
licenses a credit card system to author-

ize merchants to accept, transmit, or
_process

-payment by credit
through the credit card system . for

money, goods or services, or anything

else of value.

(o) Attorney Geneml mea.ns the chief
legal officer of a state. -

(c) Billing information means any.data
that enables any person to access a
customer’s or donor’s account, such as

a credit card, checking, savings, share -
or similar account, utility bill, mort-.

gage loan account, or debit card.

3
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-Fedeq_ul Trade Commission -

. (d), Caller identification service means a
gervice that allows a telephone sub-

‘scriber to have the telephone number,

and, where available, name of the call-
~ing party transmitted contempora-
neously with the telephone call, and

displayed on a device.in or connected:

- to0 the subscriber’s telephone.
- (e) Cardholder means a person 130
whom & credit card is issued or who is

- authorized to use a credit card on be-
. -half of or in addition: to the person to

whom the credit card is issued..

(D) Charitable contribution means any .

donation or gift of money or any other
" contribution.

~ thing of vailue.
.. (8) Commission means. the Federal
‘Trade Commission. . .

" (h) Credit means the mght granted by
- & creditor to a. debtor to.defer payment
" of debt or to incur debt a.nd_ defer 1ts
payment

. (. Credit card means any card, plate,
-coupon book, or other credit device ex-

.- isting for . the purpose of obtaining

‘money,. property, la,bor or services on

-credit.
" () Credit card sales dmft means: any

- record or evidence of a credlt ‘card

transaction.

- (k) Credit card -system means -any

method or procedure used to process
credit card transactions involving -cred-

it cards issued or licemsed by the oper- ]
' " failure to:-take an affirmative action to

a,tor of that system.

" (1) Customer means any person who is

or may be required to pay for goods or
services offered through ~ tele-
‘marketing. '
‘(m) Donor means a.ny person solicited
to make a charitable contribution.
 (n) ZEstablished business relationship
~means a relationship between a seller
- and a consumer based on:
‘(1) the consumer’s purchase, rental
or lease of the seller’s goods or services
_or a financial transaction between the
consumer and seller, within the eight-

eeh (18) months immediately preceding

the date of a telemarketing call; or
(2) the consumer’s inquiry or applica-
tion regarding a product or service of-

fered by the seller, within the three (3)

months immediately preceding the
date of a telemarketing call.

(o) Free-to-pay conversion means, in-

an offer or agreement to sell or provide
any. goods or services, a provision
under which a. customer .receives a

§3'IO 2..-

) product or service for free for an. m:l‘lna,l o

period and will incur an obligation to
pay for the product or service if he or

“she does not take affirmative action to :

cancel before the end of that period.
(p)- Investment opportunity. means any-

‘thing, tangible or intangible, that is of-

fered, offered. for sale, sold, or traded
based wholly or in part on representa-

‘tions, either express or implied, about.

past present, or future mcome proflt
or appreciation. ‘

(@) Material means 1ikely to- a.ffect a
person’s choice of, or conduct regard-.
ing, -goods. or services or a cha.nta.ble

(1) Merchant means a person who is
authorized under a written contract
with an acquirer to honor or accept-
credit cards, or to transmit or process
for payment credit card payments, for
the purchase of goods or services or a
charitable contribution.

(8) Merchant _agreement means a wrlt—
ten contract between a merchant and
an acquirer 'to honor or accept credit
cards, or to transmit or. process for
payment credit card payments,. for the
purchase of goods or services or a cha.r—
itable contribution.

(t) Negative option feature means,
an offer or agreement to sell or provide
any goods or .services, a provision
under which the customer’s. silence. or

reject goods or services or to cancel the
agreement is interpreted by the seller
as acceptance of the offer.

(w)- Outbound telephone call means. a-

" telephone call initiated by a tele-

marketer to induce the purchase of
goods or services or to. solicit a chari-
table contribution.

(v). Person: means any Iindividual,
group, unincorporated association, lim-
ited or general partnership; corpora-
tion, or other business entity. -

(w) Preacquired account information
means. any information that enables a
seller or telemarketer - to cause. a
charge to be placed against a cus-
tomer’s or donor’s account without ob-
taining the account number directly
from the customer or donor during the
telemarketing transaction pursuant to
which the account will be charged.

‘(x) Prize means anything offered, or
purportedly offered, and given, or pur-
portedly given, to a person by chance.

375
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'§3103

For purposes of t]:L‘LS def]mtlon chance
“exists if a person is guaranteed.to.re-

_ceive an .item and, at the tife of the
the  tele- -

.offer . or purported offer,
-marketer does not identify the speclﬂc
;-1tem that the person will receive.

" (Y) Prize promotion means:

. (1) A sweepstakes or other g'a,me of
_chance or '

- (2) An oral or written express or im-

'plled representation that a person has ,
- solicitation are made by the same tele-

. marketer. An ‘““internal upsell” is a so-

won, has been selected to-receive,. or
" may be eligible to receive a prlze or
. purported prize.

(z)- Seller means any person who, in
connection with a telemarketing trans-
action, provides, offers to- provide, or
arranges for others to provide goods or

services to- the' customer in excha.nge

for consideration.

(aa) State means any state of the '

- United States the District of Colum-
" 'bia, Puerto Rico, the Northern Mariana

~ Islands, and any terrltory or possessmn
-+ of the United States. '

- (bb) Telemarketer means. any. person
who, in connection with telemarketing,
" initiates or receives telephone calls to

- or from a customer or donor.

(cc) Telemarketing means a plan, pro-
gram, or eampaign which is conducted
to'induce the purchase of goods or serv-
ices .or a charitable contribution, by
.ugse of one or more telephones and

which involves more than one inter-.

state telephone call. The term does not
include the solicitation of sales
through the mailing of a catalog

" whiech: contalns a, written:-description

or illusty ation of the goods or services
offered for sale; includes the business
address of the seller; includes multiple
pages of written material or illustra-
tions; and has been issued not less fre-
quently than once a year, when the
person making  the solicitation does
-not solicit customers by telephone but
only receives calls initiated by cus-
-tomers in response to the catalog and
- during those calls takes orders only
without further solicitation. For pur-
poses of the previous sentence, the
term “further solicitation’ does mnot
include providing the customer with
Information about, or attempting to
sell, any other item included in the
same catalog which prompted the cus-

tomer’s call or in a substantially simi- ;

lar catalog.

‘making - refunds,

'|6 CFR Ch. 1 ('l 1-04 Edlflon)

(dd) Upselng means sollcltmg the
purchase of goods or services following

an initial transaction during a single-

telephone call. The upsell is a separate
telemarketing transaction, not a con-
tinuation of the initial transaction. An
“external upsell’” ‘is a -solicitation
made by or -on behalf of a seller dif-

ferent from the seller in the initial
.transaction, regardless of whether the

initial transaction and the subsequent

licitation made by or on behalf of the

- same seller as in the initial trans-

action, regardless of whether the ini-
tial transaction and subsequent solici-
tation are made by the same tele—
marketer. .

§310 3 Deceptive telemarketmg acts or

practices.
(a) Prohibited deceptzve telema‘rketmg

-acts or practices. It is a deceptive tele-

marketing act or practice and a viola-
tion  of this Rule for any seller or tele-
marketer to engage in the following
conduct:

(1) Before a customer paysl for goods
or services offered, failing to. disclose
truthfully, in a -clear and conspicuous
manner, - the following material infor-

mation:

(i) The total costs to purcha.se re-
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any

goods or services that are the subject .

of the sales offer;2

(ii) All material restrictions, limita-
tions, or conditions to purchase, re-
ceive, or use the goods or services that
are the subject of the sales. offer;

-(iii) If the seller has a policy of not
cancellations, -ex-
changes, or repurchases, a statement

informing t_he customer. that this is the

1When a seller or telemarketer uses, or di-
rects a customer to use, a courier to trans-
port payment, the seller or telemarketer

must make the disclosures required by

§310.3(a)(1) before sending a courier to pick
up payment or authorization for payment, or

" directing a customer to have a courier pick

up payment or authorization for payment.
2For offers of consumer credit products
subject to the Truth in Lending Act, 15
U.8.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
226, compliance with the disclosure require-
ments under the Truth in Lending Act and
Regulation % shall constitute comphance

with §310 3(&)(1)(1) of ‘bhls Rule
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' seller s pollcy, or, if the seller or tele-
representation.

ma.rketer ‘makes a
about a refund, cancellation, exchange,
or repurchase policy, a statement of all

. material terms and cond_nnons of such
- policy;

(iv) In any prize promotwn the odds

- of being able to receive the prize, and,
. if the odds are not calculable. in ad-
"vance, the factors used in calculating
the odds; that.no purchase or payment
"is required to win a. prize or to partici-

pate in a. prize promotion and that any
purchase. or payment will not increase

"~ the person’s chances- of winning;. and

the no-purchase/no-payment- method’ of

participating .in - the prize promotion.

"with either instructions on how to par-.

. ticipate or an address or local or toll-
- free telephone number to whiech cus-

.tomers may write or call for informa-
tion on how to participate;

(v) All.material costs or cond.ltlons

" to receive or-redeem a prize that is the
3 subJect of the prize promotion;

(vi) In the sale of any goods or serv—
ices represented to protect, insure, or

. otherwise . limit a. customer’s liability
in the event of unauthorized use of the
© customer’s credit card, the limits on a-
cardholder’s liability for unnauthorized
" use of a. credit card pursuant to 15

U.8.C. 1643; and
(vii) If the offer mcludes a nega.twe

_ optlon feature, all material terms and

conditions of the negative option fea-

~ ture, mclud.mg, but not limited to, the -
fact that the -customer’s account will

be charged unless the customer takes

an affirmative action to avoid the

charge(s), the: date(s) the charge(s) will
be submitted for payment, and the spe-
cific steps the customer must take to
avoid the charge(s).

(2 Mlsrepresentmg, d1rect1y or by
implication, in. the sale of goods or

services any of the follomng material .

information: ]

(D). The total costs to purchase, re-
ceive, or use, and the quantity of, any
goods or services that are the subject
of a sales.offer;

" (ii) Any material restriction, limita-

" tiom, or condition to purchase, receive,

or use goods or services that are the

: subJect of a sales offer;

(1ii) Any material aspect of the per-

formance, efficacy, nature, or. central

- §310.3

"-characteristics of goods or services

that are the subject. of a sales offer;
' (iv) Any material. aspect of the na-

' ture. or terms of: the seller’s refund,’
- cancellation, excha,nge, or repurchase
; pOllCleS,

(V) Any ‘material a.spect of a prize -'

4promotlon incliading, but not limited .

to, the odds of being able to receive a
prize, the nature or value of a.prize, or
that a purchase or payment is required
to .win a prize or to pa.rtmlpate in a
prize promotion; '

(vl) Any material aspect. of an invest- -
ment opportunity including, but mnot
limited to, risk, liquidity, earmngs po- ;
tential, or profitability; - -

(vii) A seller’s or telemarketer’s a,f—
filiation with, or endorsement or spon-

sorship by, a.ny person or government i
- entity;

(viii) That any customer needs of—

.fered goods or services to provide pre- -

tections a customer already has pursu--
ant to 15 U.S.C: 1643; or.

(ix) Any material aspect of a mnega-
tive option feature including, but not:

-limited to, the fact that the customer’s

account will be charged unless the cus-
tomer takes an affirmative action to
av01d the charge(s), the date(s) the
charge(s) will be submitted for pay-
ment, and the specific steps the cus-
tomer must take to avoid the

- charge(s).

(3) Causing billing infermation to be -
submitted for payment, or collecting or
attempting to collect payment for
goods or services or a charitable con-
tribution, directly or indirectly, with-
out the customer’s or donor’s express
verifiable authorization, except when
the method of payment used is a eredit
card subject to protections of the
Truth in Lending Act and Regulation
7.3 or a debit card. subject to the pro-
tections of the Electronic Fund Trans-
fer Act and Regulation E.% Such au-
thorization shall be deemed verifiable
if any of the followmg mea.ns is em-

ployed:

ATruth in Lending Act, 156 U.S.C. 1601 et
seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR part 226.
4Electronic Fund Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C.:

1693 et seg., and. Reg‘ulatmn =, 12 CFR pa.rt_» o
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(i) Express written authorization by

the customer or donor, which includes

- the customer’s or donor’s signature;5
.. (ii) Bzpress oral authorization which
is audio-recorded and made available

- upon request to the customer or donor,’

- and the customer’s or donor's bank or
. -other billing entity, and which evi-

dences clearly both the customer’s or.

donor’s: authorization of payment for
the goods or services or charitable con-
tribution that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction and the cus-

‘ "~ .- tomer’s or donor’s receipt. cf all of the

: followmg information:

- (A) The number of debits, cha,rges or

o pa.yments (if more than one); - :

. (B) The date(s) the debit(s),
charge(s), or pa.yment(s) W111 be sub-

 mitted for payment; .

- (C) The amount(s) of the deblt(s), .
"~ charge(s), or payment(s); _
. (D) The customer’s or donor’s name;

. (B) The customer’s or donor’s billing
_information, identified with sufficient
‘specificity such. that the customer or

donor understands what account will

be used to collect payment for the
goods or services or charitable con-
tribution that are the subject of the
telemarketing transaction;

(F) A telephone number for customer
‘or donor ingquiry that is answered dur-
. ing normal business hours; and
T (G The date of the customer’s or do-
‘nor’s oral authorization; or

(iiil) Written confirmation of the
transaction, identified in a clear and
conspicuous manner as such 'on the
outside of the envelope, sent to the
customer or donor via first class mail
prior to the submission for payment of
the customer’s or donor’s billing infor-
‘mation, and that includes all of the in-
formation .contained. in
§§310.3(a)(3)(1i)(A)-(G) and a. clear and
conspicuous. statement of the proce-

- dures by which the .customer or donor

. can obtain a refund from the seller or
telemarketer or charitable organiza-
tion in the event the confirmation is
inaccurate; provided, however, that this
means of authorization shall not be

5For purposes of this Rule, the term “sig-

nature’ shall include an electronic or digital

form of signature, to the extent that such
form of signature is recognized as a valid sig-
nature under applicable federal laW or sta,te
contract law.

16 CFR Ch. 1 (1-1-04 Edition)

- deemed verifiable in instances in which
-goods or services are offered in a trans-

action involving a free-to-pay conver-

sion and preacqmred a.ccou.nt mi‘orma— -

tion.
4) Makmg a false or mlslea.dlng

statement to induce any person to pay

for goods or services or-to mduce %
charitable contribution.. ' ‘
(b) Assisting and facilitating. It is a de-

ceptive telemarketing act or practice

and a violation of this Rule for a per-
son to provide substantial assistance or

- support. to any seller or telemarketer
when that person knows or consciously

avoids knowing that the seller or tele-

marketer is engaged in any act or prac-

tice that violates §§310. 3(3,), (c) or (d),

-or §310.4 of this Rule.

(c) Credit card loundering. Except as
expressly permitted by the applicable
credit card system, it is a deceptive
telemarketing act or pra,ctlce and a
violation of this Rule for: ,

(1) A merchant to present to or de-
posit. into, or cause another to present
to or deposit into, the credit card sys-

tem for payment, a credit card sales.
draft generated by a telemarketing

transaction that is not the result of a
telemarketing credit card transaction
between the cardholder and the mer-
chant;

(2) Any person to. emp].oz, qohclt or ‘

otherwise cause a merchant, or an em-
ployee, representative, or agent of the
merchant, to present to or deposit into
the credit card system for payment, a
credit card sales draft genera,ted by a
telemarketing transaction that is not
the result of a telemarketing credit
card transaction between the card-
holder and the merchant; or :

(3) Any person to obtain access to the
credit card system through the use of a

business relationship or an affiliation -

with a merchant, when such access is
not authorized by the merchant agree-
ment or the applicable credit ca.rd sys-
tem. :

(d) Prombzted deceptive acts or prac-

" tices in the solicitation of charitable con-
‘tributions. It is a fraudulent charitable
solicitation, a deceptive telemarketing

act or practice, and a violation of this
Rule for any telemarketer soliciting
charitable contributions to misrepre-

sent, directly or by implication, any of
the following material information:
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~(1) The nature, purpose, or mission of
any entity on behalf of which a chari-
table contribution is being requested,. -
-(2) That any charitable contribution
is tax deductible in whole or in part;

table contribution will be used;

(4) The percentage or amount of any
“charitable contribution that will go to
" a charitable organization or to any

. particular charitable program;

(5) Any material aspect  of a prize
.promotlon including, but not limited
- to: the odds. of being able to receive a
prize; the nature or value of a prize; or

that a charitable contribution is re-
‘quired to win a prize-or to pa.rtlclpate :

maprlze promotion;er
(6) A charitable organization’s or

telemarketer’s affiliation with, or-en-.

‘dorsement or sponsorship by, any per—
3 son or government entlty

' §310.4 Abusive _telemarketmg acts or

practlces -

(a) Abusive conduct genemlly Tt is an
abusive telemarketing act or practice
and a violation of this Rule for any
. ‘seller-or telemarketer to engage in the
' followmg conduct:

- (1) Threats, intimidation, or the use

of profane or obscene language;
(2) Requesting or receiving payment
~of any fee or consideration for goods or
services represented to remove deroga-

tory information. from, or improve, a ..

person’s. credit history, .credit record
or credit rating until:
(i) The time frame in which the seller
has represented .all of _the goods or
services will be provided to that person
has expired; and .
. (ii) The seller has provided the person
- with documentation in the form of a
consumer report from a consumer. re-
porting agency demonstrating that the
' promised results have been achieweéd,
. such report having been issued more
than six months after the results were

achieved. Nothing in this Rule should

be construed to affect the requirement
in the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15
U.8.C. 1681, that a consumer report
may only be obtained for a specified
permissible purpose;

(3) Requesting or receiving payment

of any fee or.consideration from a. per-
son for goods or services represented to

recover or otherwise assist in the re-

* (8) The purpose for which any chari-

§3104

turn of money or any other item of
value paid for by, or promised to, that

person in a previous telemarketing

transaction,” until seven (7). business
-days after such money or other item is
delivered to that person. This provision
shall not apply to goods or services
provided to a person by 3 llcensed at-
‘torney;.

¢)) Requestmg or recelvmg payment
of any fee or consideration in advance
of.ebtaining a loan or other extension

" of credit when the seller or: .tele-

marketer has guaranteed or - rep-
resented a high likelihood of success: in

-obtaining or arranging a.loan or other

extension: of credit for a person;

' (5) Disclosing. or receiving,. for: con-

sideration, unencrypted consumer - ac-
count numbers for use _
marketing; provided, however, that this

paragraph. shall not apply to the disclo-

sure or receipt of a customer’s or do-
nor’s billing information to process a
payment for goods or services or a
charitable contrlbutlon pursua.nt to a
transaction;-

(6) Causing blllmg 1niorma1:10n to be
submitted for payment, directly or-in-
directly, without the express informed

consent of the customer or donoer.-In -
‘any telemarketing transaction, the

seller or telemarketer must obtain the

express informed consent of the. cus-
tomer or donor to be charged for the = °

goods or services or charitable con-
tribution and to. be charged using the
identified aecount. In -~any tele-
narketing transaction
preacquired account information, the

- requirements in  paragraphs (a)(6)(d)

through (ii) of this seetion must be met
to evidence express informed consent..
(1) In any telemarketing transaction
involving preacquired account informa-
tion and a free-to-pay -conversion fea-
ture, the seller or telemarketer must:
(A) obtain from the customer, at a
minimum, the last four (4) digits of the
account number to be charged; '
(B) obtain from the customer his or
her express agreement to be charged
for the goods. or services and to. be

charged using the aceount number pur-
‘suant to paragraph (a)(6)(1)(A) of this

section; and,
© make and maintain an audio re-
cording of the entire telemarketing

tra.nsa,cti__on. .
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In any other 'tel'éma.rketing trans-
action’ involving breacquired account

. information not described in baragraph
- (a)6)d) of this sect‘ion,_ the. seller or

telemarketer must: , . .
(A) at a minimum, identify .the se-

count to be charged with. sufficient

- specificity for the customer or donor to
understand what account will .be
- charged;and - C C

. .(B) obtain from. the customer op

- donor his or her express agreement to
~ be charged for the goods or services

and to be charged using the account

‘number identified pursuant to para-

- .graph (a)(6)(i1)(A) of this section; or

-+ (7 Failing to transmit or cause to be
“transmitted the - telephone number,

and, when made available by the tele-
- marketer’s carrier, the name of the:

'telema,rketer; to-any caller identifica-

tion service in use by a recipient of a-

telemarketing - call; provided that it

. Shall not be a violation to substitute. -
(for the name and phone number used

- 1n, or billed for; making the call) the
~ name of the seller or charitable organi-
- zation on behalf ' of which a. tele-

- marketing call is placed, and the sell-

- er’s ‘or charitable organization’s cus-
- .tomer or donor service telephone num-
- ber, which is answered during regular
-business hours. .
. (b) Pattern of calls. (1) It is an abusive
-~ telemarketing act or practice and a
_ violation of this Rule for a tele-
marketer to engage in, or for a seler

to cause a telemarketer to engage in,

the following conduct:

(i) Causing any telephone to ring, or
engaging any person in telephone con-
versation, repeatedly or- continuously
with intent to- annoy, abuse, or harass

o any person at the called number;

(ii) Denying or interfering in any
- way, directly or indirectly, with a per-
son’s right to be placed on any registry
of names and/or telephone numbers of
“persons who do-not wish to receive out-
‘bound telephone calls established to
- comply with §310.4(b)(1)(iii); _

(iii) Initiating any outbound tele-
. phone call to a person when:

(A) that person previously has stated
that he or she does not wish to receive
an outbound telephone call made by or
on behalf of the seller whose goods- or
services are being offered or made on

behalf of the charitable organization

16 CFR Ch. | (1-1-04 Edifion)

for which a charitable contribution is

being solicited: or

" (B) that person’s telebhoné number is
on the ‘‘do-not-call”’ registry, main-

‘tained by the Commission, of persons

who do not wish to receive. outbound

‘telephone calls to induce the purchase
- of goods or services unless the seller

(i) has obtained the eXpress -agree-
ment, ‘in ‘writing, of such person to
blace calls to that person. Such. written
agreement shall clearly evidence such
berson’s authorization that. calls made
by or on-behalf of a specific party may
be placed to that berson, and shall in-
clude the telephone number to which -

- the calls may be placed and the signa-

ture ¢ of that person; or .
(ii) has an established business rela-

- tionship with such person, and that

person has not stated that he or she
does not wish to receive outbound tele-
phone calls - . under paragraph
(b)(1)(i1i)(A) of this section; or i

(iv) Abandoning any outbound tele-
phone call. An outbound telephone call
is ““abandoned” under this section: ifa
person answers it and the telemarketer

. does not connect the call to-a sales rep-

resentative within: two (2) seconds of
the person’s completed greeting.

(2) It is an abusive telemarketing act
or practice and a violation of this Rule
for any person to sell, rent, lease, pur-
chase, or use any list established to
comply with §310.4(b)(1)(ii)A), or
maintained by the Commission pursu-
ant to §310.4(b)(1)(ii)(B), for any pur-
pose except compliance with the provi-
sions of this Rule or otherwise to pre-
vent telephone calls to telephone num-
bers on such lists. : .

(3 ‘A seller or telemarketer will not
be liable for violating §810.4¢b)(1)(ii)
and (iii) if it can demonstrate that, as

- bart of the seller’s or telemarketer’s

routine business practice: _
(1) It has established and imple-
mented written procedures to comply
with §310.4(b)(1)(ii) and @dii); -
(ii) It has trained its personnel, and
any entity assisting in its compliance,

8For purposes of this Rule, the term “sig-
nature” shall include an electronic or digital
form of signature, to the extent that such

‘form of signature is recognized as a valid sig-

nature under applicable federal law or state
contract law. - o : -
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to §310.4(b)(3)(1):

(iii) The seller, or a telema,rketer or
a,nother person acting on behalf of the
geller or charitable organization, has
maintained and recorded a. list of tele-
phone numbers the seller or charitable
. organization may not contact, in com-
pha.nce with §310. 4(b)(1)(m)(A), B

(iv) The seller or & telema.rketer uses
2, process to. prevent telemarketing to.
any telephone number on any list es-

or 310.4(b)(1)({ii)(B), employing a
version of the ‘‘do-not-call” registry
obtained from the Commission no more
' than three (3) months prior to the-date

any call is made, and maintains

records documenting this pProcess;

(v). The seller or a telemarketer or
: a.nother person acting on behalf of the
seller or charitable organization, mon-
 itors and enforces compliance with-the
- procedures established pursuant- to
- §310.40)(3)(E); and .

(vi) Any subsequent call otherwise

. violating §310.4(b)(1)(Ei) or (iii) is the
. - result-of error.

(4 A seller or telema.rketer will not
'be liable for violating 810.4(b)(L)(iv) if:
(1) the seller or telemarketer employs

technology that ensures abandonment....-3

of no more than three (3) percent of all

- calls answered-by.-a person, mea.sured

per day per calling campaign;.

(ii) the seller or telemarketer, for
» ea,ch telemarketing call placed,.allows

the telephone to ring for at least fif-
teen (15) seconds or four (4) rings before
disconnecting an unanswered call;

(iii) whenever a. sales representative
is not available to speak with the per-
son answering the call within two: (2)
seconds after the person’s completed
greeting, the seller or. telemarketer
promptly plays a recorded message
that states: the name and telephone
number of the seller on whose behalf
‘the call was placed”; and

(iv) the seller or telemarketer in ac-
cordance with §8310.5(b)-(d);, retains
~ records establishing compliance: with
- §310.4(b)(D(D)-(1iD).

7This provision does not affect any seller’s.
or telemarketer’s obligation to comply with-

relevant state and federal laws, including
‘but not limited to the TCPA, 47 U.8.C. 227,
-and 47 CFR part 64.1200. : :

in the procedures esta.bhshed pu_rsuant -

tablished pursuant to §§310.4(b)(3)(iii)

§3'IO 4

(c) C’allmg time restrzctzons ‘Without
the prior consent of a person, it is an
abusive telemarketing act or practice

-and a violation of this Rule for a tele- -

marketer to engage in outbound tele-

phone calls to a person’s remdence at

any time other than between 8:00 a.m.

and 9:00 p.m. local time at- the ca.lledA

‘person’s.location.

(@) Required oral. dzsclosures in the sale
" of goods or services. It i8 an abusive tele-
- marketing act or practice -and .a viola-
tion of this Rule for a telemarketer:in

an outbound telephone:call or internal

or external upsell to induce the- pur-

chase of goods or services-to fail to dis-

close .truthfully, promptly, and-in a
‘clear and conspicuous manner to the
person receiving the call the fo]lowmg
information: -

(1) The 1dent1ty of the seller

* (2) That the purpose of the call is to

‘sell goods or services;

(3) The nature of the goods or serv-
ices; and.

NC)) That no. purcha.se or. payment is
necessary to be able to win a prize or
participate . in a prize promotion. if a
prize promotion is offered and that a.ny
pu_mha,se or payment will not increase
the person’s .chances. of winning.. This
disclosure must be. made- before or in
conjunction with the- ‘desonp_tlon of the

prize to the person called. If requested—-
by that person, the telemarketer must-

disclose the no-purchass/no-payment

-entry method for the prize promotion;

provided, however, that, in any internal
upsell for the sale of goods or services,

the seller or telemarketer must pro-
vide the disclosures listed in this sec-

tion only to the sxtent that the infor-
mation in the upsell differs from the

disclosures provided in-the initial tele-

marketing transaction.

(e) Required oral disclosures.in .chan-
table solicitations. It is an abusive tele-
marketing act or practice and a viola-
tion of this.Rule for a telemarketer, in
an outbound telephone call to-induce &
charitable contribution, to fail to dis-
close truthfully, promptly, and in a

-clear and conspicuous manner to the

person receiving the call, the following

“information:

(1) The identity of the charitable or-
ga,mzamon on behalf of which the re-
quest is being made and
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| (@ Tha,t the purpose of the call is to
solicit a charitable contribution.. -

| §310.5 4Recordkeepin.g;requirements. ;

. keep, for a period of 24 months from

"the date the record is produced, the fol- -
" lowing records relating to 1ts tele—

‘marketing activities:

(1) All substantially dlfferent adver—
msmg, brochures, = telemarketing
. scripts, and promotional materials;

" (2). The name and last known address

of each prize recipient and the prize

-awarded for prizes that are - rep-

- resented, directly or by implication, to

- ‘have a-value of $25.00 -or more; .
(3) The name and last known address
of each customer, the goods or services

E -purchased, the date such goods or serv-

ices were shipped or provided, and the
. amount paid by the customer for the

. .goods or services;8

(49 The name, any flctltlous ‘name

used_ the last known home address and

- telephone number, and the job title(s)
for all current and former employees

o 'dlrectly involved in telephone sales or

solicitations; provided, however, that if

the seller or telemarketer permits fic-.

titious names to be used by employees,
each fictitious name must be traceable
'to only one specific employee; and -

~ (5) All verifighla authorizations or
records of express informed consent or
 express-agreement required to be pro-
-. vided or received under this Rule..

(b) A seller or telemarketer may -

keep the records required by §8310.5(a)
.in’ any form, and in the same manner,
format, or place as they keep such
. .records in the ordinary course of busi-
ness. Failure. to keep all records re-
quired by §310:5(a) shall be a wolatlon
of this Rule. :
.~ (c) The seller and the telemarketer
~ calling on behalf of the seller may, by

written agreement, allocate responsi-
bility between themselves for the. rec-
ordkeeping required by this Section.

When a seller and telemarketer ha.ve ,

' .entered into such. an agreement, the

. 8For offers of consumer. credlt products
subject. to the Truth in Lending Act, 15
U.8.C. 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 CFR
- 226, compliance with the recordkeeping re-
quirements under the Truth in Lending Act,

and Regulation Z, shall constitute compll—

. _a.nce with §310 5(&)(3) of this Rule

. 16CFRCh. [ (1-1-04 Edition) -
~terms of that agreement shall govern,
‘and the seller or telemarketer, as the
' case may.be, need not keep records
_ EnLS. that duplicate those of the other. If the
(a) Any seller or telemarketer shall | '

agreement is unclear as to who ‘must
maintain any required record(s), or if
no such -agreement -exists, the seller
shall be responsible for complying with
§§310.5(a)(1)-(3) and - (5);. the tele-

‘marketer shall be respon51b1e for com- '

plying with §310.5(a)(4).

. (d) In the 'event of any dissolution or ‘

termination - of the seller’s or tele-
marketer’s business, the principal of
that seller or telemarketer shall main-
tain all records as required under thig
Section. In the event of any sale, as-
signment, or other change in ownership
of the seller’s or telemarketer’s busi-

ness, the successor business shall main- -
tain all- records reqmred u.nder .this

Sectlon

§ 310.6 Exemptlons.

: (a.) Solicitations to. induce charitable
contributions: via outbound . telephone.
calls are not ‘covered - by
§310.4(b)(1)(1ii)(B) of this Rule.

(b) The following acts or pra,ctlces
are exempt from this Rule:

(1) The sale of pay-per-call services

~ subject to the Commission’s Rule enti-
. tled_‘‘Trade Regulation Rule Pursuant
~to the Telephone Disclosure and Dis-

pute Resolution Act of 1992,” 16 CFR
Part 308, provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to the re-
quirements of §§310 4(a.)(1), @), (b),
and (¢);

(2) The sale of fra,nc}nses .subject to
the Commission’s Rule entitled “Dis-
closure Requirements and Prohibitions
Concerning  Franchising and Business
Opportunity Ventures,” (‘‘Franchise
Rule’) 16 CFR Part 436, provided, how-
ever, that this exemption does not
apply to the requirements of
§§310.4(a)(1), (a)(D, (b), and (c);

(3) Telephone calls in which the sale
of goods or services or charitable solic-

itation is not completed, and payment.

or authorization of payment is not re-
quired, until after a face-to-face sales
or donation presentation by the seller
or charitable organization, provided,
however, that this exemption does not
apply to the requirements of

§§810.4@)(D), (@)D, (b), and (0);
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(4) Telephone ca.lls 1mt1a.ted by a cus-

of any solicitation by a seller, chari-
table organization, or telemarketer,
.. provided, however, that this exemption

calls;

" tomer or donor in response to an adver-
. tisement through any medium, other
than direct mail solicitation, provided,
however,. that this exemption. does not

ment relating to investment opportuni-
ties, business opportunities other than

' pusiness arrangements covered by the

" Franchise Rule; or advertisements in-

volving goods or services described in

- ' §§810.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310.4(a)(2)-(4); or to

any instances of upsellmg included in -

such telephone calls,
~ (6) Telephone ‘calls initiated by a cus-

tomer or donor in response to a direct

‘mail solicitation, including solicita-

tions via . the U.S. Postal Service, fac--

‘gimile transmission, electronic mail,
.and other similar methods of delivery

" in which a solicitation is directed to .

specific address(es) or person(s), that
‘clearly, conspicuously; and truthfully
. discloses_all material information list-

ed in §810.3(a)(1) of this Rule, for any .

. goods or services offered in the direct
mail solicitation, and that contains no
material misrepresentation regarding

- any item contained in §310.3(d) of.this
Rule for any requested charitable con-.

tribution; provided, however, that this
exemption does not apply to.calls initi-
“ated by a customer in response to a di-
rect mail solicitation relating to .prize
promotions, investment opportunities,
business opportunities other than husi-
ness arrangements -covered by the
Franchise Rule, or goods.or services de-
~scribed in §§3810.3(a)(1)(vi) or 310.4(a)(2)-
" (4); or to any instances of upselling in-
cluded in such telephone ealls; and
(7) Telephone calls between a tele-
marketer and any business,
~ calls to induce the retail sale of non-

durable office or cleaning supplies; pro-

-vided, however, that §310.4(b)(1)({ii)(B)
and §310.5 of this Rule shall not apply
to sellers or telemarketers of non-
durable office or cleaning supplies.

'tomer or donor that are not the result .

does. not' apply .to any instamces of -
- upselling mcluded in such telaephone‘

(5) Telephone ca]ls mltla,ted by a cus- '

" apply to calls initiated by a customer -
or donor in response to an advertise-.

except.

"ssmal

’§310.7 Achons by states and pnvate .

persons. .
(a,) Any a.ttorney genera.l or other of- -

" ficer of a state authorized by the state

to bring an - action under the Tele-
ma,rke’ﬁmg and Consumer Fraud and
Abuse Prevention Act, and ‘any private
person who brings.an action under that

.Act, shall serve written notice -of its -

action on the Commission, if feagible,
prior to its initiating an action under

. this Rule. The notice shall be sent. to

the Office of the- Director,. Bureau.. of
Consumer ' Protection, Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, D.C. -26580,
and shall include a copy of the state’s
or private person’s complaint and any

‘other pleadings. to be filed with the

court. If prior notice is not feasible,
the state or private person shall serve
the Commission with.the required no-
tice mmedlately upon mstitutmg its
action.

.....{b) Nothing conta.med in this Seotlon
shall prohibit any attorney general or
other authorized state official -from
proceeding in state court on the basis

~of an alleged violation of any civil or
.criminal statute of such sta.te

§3108 Fee for access to the Natlonal
- Do Not Call Registry. .

(a) It is-a violation of this Rule. for
any seller to initiate, or cause.any.

‘telemarketer to initiate, an outbound

telephone call to any person whose
telephone numher is within a given
area code unless such seller, either di-

" rectly or through another person, first

has paid the annual fee, required by
§310.8(c), for access to telephone num-
bers within that area code.that are in-
cluded in the National Do Not Call
Registry maintained by the Cemmis-
sion under §310.4(b)(1)(Aii)(B); provided,
however, that such payment is not nec-
essary if the seller inmitiates, or causes

‘2 telemarketer to initiate, calls solely

to - persons  pursuant .. to
§§310.4(b)(1)({ii)(B)(@) or (¥), and the
seller doss not access the National Do
Not Call Reglstry for any other pur-

pose:

(b) It is . a violation of thls Rule for
any telemarketer, on behalf of any sell-
er, to initiate an outbound telephone
call to any. person whose telephone

- number is within a givern area code un-

less that seller, either directly or

383
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o .fh_i-ough- another person, first has paid
the annual fee, required by §310.8(c);
for access to the telephone numbers

- within that area code that are included

in the National Do Not Call Registry;

provided, however, that such payment .

'is not nmecessary if the seller initiates,
or causes a telemarketer to initiate,
calls : solely to persons. pursuant to

© §8810.400)(D(HI(BIG) or (i), and the

-Seller does not access the National Do
Not Call Registry for any other pur-
pose. .. . . R
- * (c) The ‘annual fee, which must be
paid by any person prior to obtaining

access to the National Do Not Call

Registry, is $25 per area code of data
accessed, up to a maximum of $7,375;
provided, however, that there shall be
. no charge for the.first five area codes

- of data accessed by any person, and

provided further, that there shall be no
charge to any person engaging in or
- causing others to engage in outbound
telephone. calls to consumers and who
18 accessing the National Do Not Oall
Registry without being required under
this Rule, 47 CFR 64.1200, or any other
federal law. Any person accessing the

- National Do Not Call Registry may not
participate in any arrangement to-

- share the cost of accessing the reg-
- istrys-imeluding any arrangement with
 any telemarketer or service Pprovider to
- divide the costs to access:-the registry
- among various clients of that tele-
marketer or.service pbrovider. :

-(d) After a person, either directly or
_through another person, pays the fees
set forth in §310.8(c), the person will be

provided. a unique account number’
which will allow that person to acecess-
~ the registry data for the selected area
- codes at any time for twelve months
following the first day of the month in

which the person paid the fee (‘“the an-
nual period’’). T'o obtain access to addi-
tional area codes of data during the
first six months of the annual period,

the person must first pay 325 for each-
. additional area code of data not ini-

‘tially selected. To obtain access to ad-
ditional area codes of data during the
second six months of the annual period,
the person must.: first pay $15 for each

- additional area code of data, not ini-

tially selected. The payment of the ad-
ditional fee will permit the person to

phone calls

16 CFR Ch. I (1-1-04 Edifion)

- access the additional area codes of data,

for the remainder of the annual. period.
- (e) Access to the National Do Not
Call’ Registry is limited to tele-

‘marketers, sellers, others engaged in or

causing others to-engage in telephone
calls to consumers, service providers

~ acting on behalf of such persons, and

any government agency that has law

‘enforcement authority. Prior-to-access-
' ing the National Do Not Call Registry,

& person must provide' the identifying
information required by the operator of
the registry ‘to collect the fee, and -
must. certify, under penalty of law,
that the person is accessing the reg-

istry solely to comply with the provi-

sions of this Rule or to otherwise pre-

 vent telephone calls to'.telephone‘num—
- bers on the registry. If the person is ac-

cessing the registry on behalf of sell-
ers, that person also must identify -
each of the sellers on whose behalf it is
accessing the registry, must provide
each seller’s unique account number

for access to the national registry, and
- must certify, under penalty of law,

that. the sellers will be. using the infor-
mation gathered from the registry

solely to comply with the provisions of

this Rule or otherwise to prevent tele-
to telephone numbers on

the registry.
[68 FR 45144, July 31, 2003]

| §3‘10;9: Severability.

‘The provisions of this Rule are sepa--
rate and severable from one another. If
any provision is stayed or determined
to be invalid, it is the Commission’s in-

" tention that the remaining provisions-

shall continue in effect.
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Nevertheless, the Commission

lieves that, to the extent that this
E_m(gnd_ment has an economic effect on’
mall business, the Commission has
idopted an ‘approach that minimizes the
impact to ensure that it is not-

fthe Appropriations Act thatall:-

)o Not Call Registry on a monthly:basis.

. As discussed above in detail, based on,
the record, the Commission has

xtended the interval at which
usinesses must access Registry data
‘and purge their calling lists of numbers

:{31) days, the maximum gllowahle’
ursuant to the Appropriations Act

: need for businesses, particularly smalk. -
‘businesses, to modify their procedures.
-and systems to accommodate this .

effective date forthis amended Rule

: " provision as January 1, 2005, allowmg
‘more. than nine months time for .-
necessary preparations.

¥. 4. Description of the Pro;ected .

- Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Other

.+ Compliance Requirements of the Final .
" Rule, Including an Estimate of the.

- Classes of Simall Entities That Will Be

- Subject to the Requirement of Obtaining

" Data From the Nagtional Do Not Call

" Registry Every Thirty (30) Days and the
" Type of Professional Skills That W111 Be
- Necessary To Comply : .

. -As discussed in the N'PRM this
amendment does not i lmpose any new,
* "or affect any existing, reporting, .
" disclosure, or specific recordkeeping -
- requirements within the meaning of the:
- Paperwork Reduction Act. The_

*” Commission further posited in the-
NPRM that it did not “believe that the-

" modification requiring sellers and = -,

-+ telemarketers to obtain data from the

+ National Registry. at-a more frequent -

©- interval will create a significant burden

_ . on sellers or telemarketers that have

. ‘already established systems to comply -

. with the requirement in the existing
*:- TSR that requires accessing the Registry
. database-on a quarterly basis.” But, the
.. .Commission recognized that “[t]here
" will likely be additional costs* * -*

. incurred to access the Registry every

- - thirty days [eﬂ"echvely twelve (12) imes
per year) versus ‘the current requ.u:ement

tslemarkeh.ng doesnot d.lsm:gumh between those

" entities that conduct exémpt calling, such as survey
.- calling, thass that receive inbound calls, end those
*. that condnct outbound calling campaigns. - )
. Moreover, sellers who act as their own.

: 'galema.rketsrs are not accuunted for in the Census. -

substantial, while fulfilling the mandate .

jusinesses obtain: data from the National:

‘contained on the Registry to thirty-one -

mandate. And, in'recognition of the - - °

. amendment, the Commission has set the

business procedures and systems tobe . ohiained from the Commission NO More

of every three months (eﬁecnvely four

. (4) times per year).4%

.Many commenters. argued that the

' amended Rule provision will be

burdensome on businesses, particularly.
small businesses. NADA noted that

-**dealers and other small hisinesses can
-expect a corresponding increase in the

personnel costs necessary to download
the data and perform the scrub. Because
small businesses maylack available -

- personnel to perform this additional,
function, they may find it necessary to .

outsource the function toa vendor,"

.which would: further increase costs

associated with the more frequent scrub
requirement: 42 However, as described

* below, in response to Queshon 5, the §

Commission has taken steps'to
minimize the impact of the amended
Rule provision on small businesses, to

" the extent possible while still L

effectuating the mandate of- the
Appropriations Act. -

5.-Steps the Agency Has Taken To
Minimize Any Significant Economic "
Impdct on Small Entities, Consistent

. “With the Stated Objectives of the
- . Appropriations Act, Including the

- Factual, Policy, and Legal Reasons For
- . Selecting the Alternative Finally = *

Adopted, and Why Each of the
Slgmﬁaant Altematzves Was Rejected.

As noted in the NPRM, the

Appropriations Act of 2004 provides the
- Commission no chscretlon in the matter

of wheéther to amend the TSR.” The

" - Commission, however, included it the -
- NPRM a request for factual information -
- about the amount of time it will take for - ,

“gellers and telemarketers, including
small businesses, to modify their

able to comply with the amended .
provision.” Based.on the record; ﬂna .

". Commission has determined to set the

gffective date for this, amendment as .

January 1, 2005. This time frame will, as -

noted above, prov1de busmesses,

41Based on data obtamed‘durmg the TSR
amendment finalized in 2003, the Commission .

* pstimated-that “the cdst of aocessing the Nauona_l '.

Do Not Call Registry to purge- -the numbers it
contains from e company's calling list (separate
from the fee paid to obtain the list) is eround $100.
Given this estimats, sellers and telemarksters -
seeking to comply with the proposed rule

- modification would pay $1200 per year ($100 per

scrub x 12 scrubs per year) rather than $400 per -

" year ($100 per scrub x 4 scrubs-per year).” -

42NADA at2 (recommending a January 1, 2005
effective date). See also Ziskind &t 1 {(noting that the
more frequent scrub interval will “add an
additional butden to REALTORS," and cost “‘cost
us time and money"). NRF at 2.(“for smaller -

" businesses, in- particular, the extra hours they may

be forced to spend each month in order to prepare
to contact their customers is subtracted from the

time they could spend serving.those sus_tomars")t.' R

e

especially small businesses,4? adequate -

.time to modify thejr systems and

procedures to comply, with the amended
provision. In addition, the Commission
has extended the interval at which
businesses must access Registry data. .
and purge their calling lists. of numbers

. contained on the Registry to thirty-one

{31) days, the maximum allowable -

pursuant to the Appmpnanons Act

- mandate:

Thus, Wthe ‘the Commission '
cons1de1'ed more burdensome -
alternatives (i.e., choosing an interval of ,

“thirty (30), rather than thirty-one-(31),

days, the Commission rejected those .-
alternatives, as discussed abovs, in favor.
of a regulatory approach that was the

Jeast burdensome to all regulated

@2 Amend §310.4by rewsmg : '
“paragraph (b)(3)(iv) to read as follows -

" entities, including small ent1t1es if eny .
. IX. Amended Rule

& Accordingly, the C.'Dmmlssmn amends-

_title 16, Code of Federal Regulatlons,
. 'fo]lows ;

PART 31 D—TEILEMARKETING SALES

" RULE

g 1. The euthonty citation for pa.rt 310

. con‘unues to read as follows:

. Authority: 15 U.S.C. 6101-6108. e

. §310.4 -Abusive telernarketing acts or

practices.

* 'k %

'J: LA .

(1v) The.sellerora telemarketer uses
a process to prevent télemarketing to . -
any telephone number on any. list .
established pursuant to § 310:4(b)(3) (m]
or 310.4(b)(1)(iii)(B), employinga o
version of the “‘do-not-call” registry

-than thirty-one (31)-days prior to the

.' date any call is made, and maintains
- records documenting this process;.

* * * ok *.

By duectmn of the Cnm.nussmn . .

‘Donald S. Clark,

mtewel)

Secretary

Note: This appendix will not appear in the
Code of Federal Regulatmns ‘

43 The Commission notes that the TSR apphes
only-to interstate telematketing campaigns, an
thus, is likely o exempt numerous-small business
entities that only condnct their telemarketing:
within a single state. The FCC, which regulates-
intrastate calling, while not mandated by the
Appropriations Act to modify its telemarketing. |
rules, is considering a change to bring them in line
with the TSR. See “FCC Seeks Comment on Rules -
to Eliminate Spam From Mobile Phones;

" . Commission Also Asks for Comxnents on Possible

*Safe Harbor" for Telemarketing Calls to Mobile
Phones,” Mar. 11, 2004 (containing reference to the
FCC’s lmpend.mg NPRM ona tlurty (30) day sc:mb
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xpired, it will be prompted to renew
he subscription at that time.

7. Paperwork Reduction Act '

The proposed revised fee provision
[oes not create any new recordkeeping,
gporting, or third-party disclosure
equirements. However, the :
;ommission now has data based on the
jperation of the National Do Not Call
legistry indicating that an estimated
i5,000 entities will access the registry
iach year. The Commission’s staff has
ncreased its estimate of the total
yaperwork burden accordingly, and has
iotified the Office of Management and
judget (“OMB") of the resulting minor
shange in burden hours to the existing
Jlearance, OMB Control No. 3084-0097.

/1. Regulatory Flexibility Act

The Regulatory Flexibility Act
“RFA™), 5 U.S.C. 601 et seq., requires
he agency to provide an Initial
legulatory Flexibility Analysis
“IRFA") with its proposed rule, and a
7inal Regulatory Flexibility Analysis -
“FRFA") with its final rule, unless the
igency certifies that the rule will not
1ave a significant economic impact on
1 substantial number of small entities.
\s explained in the Revised Fee NPRM -
nd this Statement, the Commission
loes not expect that its Final Amended
“ee Rule will have the threshold impact
»n small entities. As discussed above,
his Amended Rule specifically charges
10 fee for access to data included in the
egistry from one to five area codes. As
1result, the Commission anticipates
hat many small businesses will be-able
o access the national registry without
1aving to pay any annual fee, Thus, it
s unlikely that there will be a
ignificant burden on small businesses
esulting from the adoption of the
rroposed revised fees. Nonetheless, the
Jommission published an IRFA with
he Revised Fee NPRM, and is also
jublishing a FRFA with its Final
Amended Fee Rule below, in the
nterest of further explaining its
letermination, even though the
Sommission continues to believe that it
§ not required to publish such analyses.

A. Reasons for Consideration of Agency
Action o

The Amended Final Fee Rule has
)een considered and adopted pursuant
0 the requirements of the
mplementation Act and the 2004
Appropriations Act, which authorize
he Commission to collect fees sufficient
0 implement and enforce the “do-not--
:all” provisions of the Amended TSR.

B. Statement of Objectives and Legal

"Basis

As explained above, the objective of
the Amended Final Fee Rule is to
collect sufficient fees from entities that
must access the National Do Not Call
Registry. The legal authority for this
Rule is the 2004 Appropriations Act, the
Implementation Act, and the
Telemarketing Act.

C. Description of Small Entities to
Which the Rule Will Apply

The Small Business Administration
has determined that “telemarketing
bureaus” with $6 million or less in
annual receipts qualify as small
businesses.42 Similar standards, i.e., $6
million or less in annual receipts, apply
for many retail businesses that may be
“sellers” and subject to the revised fee
provisions set forth in this Amended
Final Rule. In addition, there may be
other types of businesses, other than

- retail establishments, that would be

“sellers” subject to this rule.

As described in Section IV, abave, to
date more than 57,000 entities have
accessed five or fewer area codes of data
from the national registry at no charge.
While not all of these entities may
qualify as small businesses, and some
small businesses may be required to
purchase access to more than five area
codes of data, the Commission believes
that this is the best estimate of the
number of small entities that will be -
subject to this Amended Final Rule. In
any event, as explained elsewhere in
this Statement, the Commission believes
that, to the extent the Amended Final
Fee Rule has an economic impact on
small business, the Commission has
adopted an approach that minimizes
that impact to ensure that it is not
substantial, while fulfilling the legal
mandate of the Implementation Act and
2004 Appropriations Act to ensure that
the telemarketing industry supports the
cost of the National Do Not Call

Registry. ‘
D. Projected Reporting, Recordkeeping
and Other Compliance Requirements

The information collection activities
at issue in this Amended Final Rule
consist principally of the requirement
that firms, regardless of size, that access
the national registry submit minimal
identifying and-payment information;
which is necessary for the agency to
collect the required fees. The cost
impact of that requirement and the labor
or professional expertise required for
compliance with that requirement were

42 Sgg 13 CFR 121.201.

discussed in Section V of the Revised
Fee NPRM. 43

As for compliance requirements,
small and large entities subject to the
Amended Fee Rule will pay the same -
fees to obtain access to the National Do
Not Call Registry in order to reconcile
their calling lists with the phone
numbers maintained in the national
registry. As noted earlier, however,
compliance costs for small entities are
not anticipated to have a significant
impact on small entities, to the extent
the Commission believes that
compliance costs for those entities will
be largely minimized by their ability to
obtain data for up to five area codes at
no charge.

E. Duplication With Other Federal Rules
None. -
F. Discussion of Significant Alternatives

The Commission discussed the
proposed alternatives in Section III,
above.

List of Subjects in 16 CFR Part 310
" Telemarketing, Trade practices.
VIL Final Rule

‘m Accordingly, for the reasons set forth

above, the Commission hereby amends

“part 310 of title 16 of the Code of Federal

Regulations as follows:

'PART 310—TELEMARKETING SALES
RULE ‘

8 1. The aunthority citation for part 310
continues to read as follows: :

- Authority: 15 U.S.C. 6101-6108.

m 2. Revise § 310.8(c) and (d) to read as
follows:

§310.8 Fee for access to the National Do
Not Call Registry.
* * * * *

(c) The annual fee, which must be
paid by any person prior to obtaining
access to the National Do Not Call
Registry, is $40 per area code of data
accessed, up to a maximum of $11,000;
provided, however, that there shall be
no charge for the first five area codes of
data accessed by any person, and .
provided further, that there shall be'no
charge to any person engaging in or
causing others to engage in outbound
telephone calls to consumers and who
is accessing the National Do Not Call
Registry without being required under
this Rule, 47 CFR 64.1200, or any other
federal law. Any person accessing the
National Do Not Call Registry.may not -~
participate in any arrangement to share

‘the cost of accessing the registry,

43 See 69 FR at 23704,
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including any arrangement with any
telemarketer or service provider to
divide the costs to access the registry
among various clients of that )
telemarketer or service provider.

{d) After a person, either directly or
through another person, pays the foes
set forth in § 310.8(c), the person will be
provided a unique acqount number
which will allow that person to access
the registry data for the selected area -
codes at any time for twelve months
following the first day of the month in
which the person paid the fee (“the
annual period”). To obtain access to
additional area codes of data during the
first six months of the annual period,
the person must first pay $40 for each
additional area code of data not initially
selected. To obtain access to additional
area-codes of data during the second six
months of the annual period, the person

" must first pay $20 for each additional
area code of data-not initially selected.

The payment of the additional fee will

permit the person to access the :
additional area codes of data for the

. remainder of the annual period.
* *, * * *

B]; direction of the Commission.
‘Donald S. Clark,
Secretary.

Note: The following appendix will not
appear in the Code of Federal Regulations.

Appendix—List of Acronyms for
Commenters to the TSR Revised Fe
Rule Proposal :

- Suspension and Termination Events,

Acronym

Commenter
American Insurance Association".. | AIA
American Resort Development | ARDA
Assaociatioh. . -
American Teleservices Associa- | ATA
tion. .
America's Community Bankers .... | ACB
Bernard, Ted .......ocveveemenirenrnennas TB
California Association of Realtors | CAR
Cendant Corporation ........c..eoeue. Cendant
Comerica Inc. ....ccoeevvverenrerirsencne.. Comerica
Direct Marketing Association, Inc. | DMA .
Fried, DOmgen .........cwuemenmmnnes

Hedke, Reasha .....
Heinemann, Mike :
Hughes, Roberta

Infocision Management Corpora- | IMC
tion, Inc. v
Magazine Publishers of America | MPA
Marrou, Marianne ........c.....iveveeeens MM
Midwest Readers Service ........... | MRS
National Association of Realtors .. | NAR
National Automobile Dealers As-| NADA
sociation. '
National Multi Housing Council .... | NMHC
National Newspaper Association | NNA
-ORC ProTel OPT
RELO ' RELO
Stonebridge Life Insurance Com- | SLIC
pany.

Commenter Acronym

TCIM Services<.............................: JCIM

[FR Doc. 0417330 Filed 7-26-04; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6750-01-P

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION
20 CFR Part 408

[Régulatlans ‘No. 8]

RIN 0960-AF72

Special Benefits for Certain World War
Il Veterans; Reporting Requirements,

Overpayments and Underpayments,
Administrative Review Process, .
Claimant Representation, and Federal

. Administration of State Recognition

Payments; Corrections

AGENCY: Social Security Administration.
ACTION: Correcting amendments.

SUMMARY: The Social Security
Administration published a document
in the Federal Register on- May 10, 2004

. (69 FR 25950), revising our rules dealing
. with claims for Special Veterans

Benefits under title VIII of the Social

Security Act. That document incorrectly

designated the final four paragraphs in
§408.1003. This document corrects the
final'regulations by redesignating those
paragraphs. .

DATES: Effective on June 9, 2004.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Robert J. Augustine; Social Insurance
Specialist, Office of Regulations, 100
Altmeyer Building, Social Security
Administration, 6401 Security ‘
Boulevard, Baltimore, MD 21235-6401,
{410) 9650020, or TTY (410) 966-5609.
For information on eligibility or filing
for benefits, call our national toll-free.
numbers, 1-800-772—-1213 or TTY 1- .
800--325-0778, or visit our Internet Web
site, Social Security Online, at htip://
www.socialsecurity.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The final
rules that are the subject of this
correction set forth six new subparts in
part 408 (Special Benefits for Certain
World War I Veterans). The six new
subparts dealt with the following topics:
the events you must report to us after
you apply for SVB, the circumstances
that will affect your SVB entitlement,
how we handle overpayments and
underpayments under-the SVB program, .
how the administrative review process
works, your right to appoint someone to
represent you in your dealings with us,
and administration agreements we may
enter into with a State under which we

will pay supplemental recognition
payments to you on the State’'s behalf.
On page 25963 of the document we
published in the Federal Register of

May 10, 2004, we incorrectly designated.:

the final four paragraphs in § 408.1003

as paragraphs (e) through (h).

List of Subjects in 20 CFR Part 408
Administrative practice and

procedure, Aged, Reporting and
recordkeeping requirements, Social

. security, Special veterans benefits,

Veterans.
® Accordingly, 20 CFR part 408 is’
corrected by making the followin

correcting amendment: .

+". PART 408—SPECIAL BENEFITS FOR

CERTAIN WORLD WAR Il VETERANS

m 1. The authority citation for subpartJ
.continues to read as follows:

Authority: Secs. 702(a)(5) and 809 of the
Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 902(a)(5) and
10089). ’ .

§408.1003 [Amended]

W 2. In § 408.1003, redesignate the final
four paragraphs as paragraphs (g)
through (). -

Martin Sussman, .
Regulations Officer, Social Security
Administration. :

[FR Doc. 04~17332 Filed 7-20-04; 8:45 am)
BILLING CODE 4191-02-F

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Indian Affairs

"25 CFR Part 170

Indian Reservation Roads Program

AGENCY: Bureau of Indian Affairs,
Interior. .

ACTION: Nofice of public information
and education meetings on Indian
Reservation Roads Program final rule.

SUMMARY: We are announcing public
meetings to provide information and -
education on the contents of each
subpart of the final rle for the Indian
Reservation Roads Program. The final
rule is the result of negotiated
rulemaking between tribal and Federal
representatives nnder the
Transportation Equity Act for 21st
Century. The final rule establishes
policies and procedures governing the
Indian Reservation Roads Program and
provides guidance for planning,
designing, constructing, and
maintaining transportation facilities, It
also expands transportation activities
available to tribes and tribal
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Appendix B
Federal income taxes of Flagship Resort Development Corporation for 2001, 2002 and 2003

Audited financial statements of Flagsh1p Resort Development Corporation for 2001, 2002 and
2003

Financial statements of Flagship Resort Development Corporation, and attachments, mgned by
Michael Valenti, Chief Fmanc1a1 Officer, on August 4, 2004

Federal income taxes of Atlantic Palace Development, LLC, for 2001, 2002 and 2003
Audited financial statements of Atlantic Palace Development, LLC, for 2001, 2002 and 2003

Financial statements of Atlantic Palace Development LLC, and attachments, signed by Michael
Valenti, Assistant Manager, on August 4, 2004

Supplementary financials of Flagship Resort Development Corporation and Atlantic Palace
Development, LLC, supplied by Frank Gorman via letter dated September 3, 2004



